
Proxies for Senate meetings must be a Senate-eligible individual from the same academic unit. No 
individual may carry more than one proxy. 

PLEASE SEND PROXIES TO LAUREN BAKER: facsen@uah.edu 

Faculty Senate Executive Committee 
 Thursday, February 18, 2016 

12:30 PM to 2:00 PM 

Shelbie King Hall, Room 369 
 

Call to Order 

 
1. Administration Reports 

 
2. Officer and Committee Reports 

 President Kader Frendi 

 President-Elect Michael Banish 

 Past-President Wai Mok 

 Parliamentarian Tim Newman 

 Ombuds Officer Carolyn Sanders 

 Governance and Operations Committee Co-Chairs James Swain and Monica Dillihunt  

 Personnel Committee Chair Ramon Cerro 

 Undergraduate Curriculum Committee Co-Chairs Eric Fong and Azita Amiri 

 Finance and Resources Committee Chair Joseph Taylor 

 Undergraduate Scholastic Affairs Committee Chair Eric Seemann 

 Faculty and Student Development Committee Chair Lenora Smith 
 

3. Approve the Agenda for Faculty Senate Meeting #565 February 25, 2016 

 Approve Faculty Senate Meeting #564 minutes from January 28, 2016 

 Accept January 21, 2016 FSEC Report 

 Administration Reports 

 Senate Officer and Committee Reports 

 Miscellaneous Business 
 

4. Request for other items 
 
Adjourn 

 
Faculty Senate 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 1 
 

 

SENATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 18, 2016 

12:30 P.M. in SKH 369 
 

Present:  Carolyn Sanders, Eric Seeman, Eric Fong, James Swain, Lenora Smith, Ramon 
Cerro, Tim Newman, Wai Mok, Joseph Taylor, Andrea Word-Allbritton, Kader 
Frendi 

 
Guests:  Provost Christine Curtis 

President Altenkirch was not present. 

 Faculty Senate President- Kader Frendi called the meeting to order at 12:31 pm. 
 

 Administration Reports  
 

 Provost Christine Curtis 
o Provost Curtis handed out information concerning the SACSCOC visit.  We will be getting 

started March 15th at 10:00 am.  The leadership group will consist of twenty members.  
There will be individual interviews.  We hope to be able to give you the topic that you 
will be asked about.  I will be giving at ten-minute presentation at the faculty senate 
meeting Thursday focusing on collaborative learning, student learning outcomes, and 
learning environment outcomes.  We will be placing FAQ’s on the web.  Faculty forums 
will be held within the next couple of weeks.  We will also post my presentation given to 
the Staff Senate yesterday so you can view that information.  I am handing out cheat 
cards, completed per my request, on collaborative learning.  This information will also 
be placed in areas that students will be able to see them.  The committee roster was 
also handed out to executive committee members.  We are making a proposal by 
completing the QEP.  We will be given a lot of input and be expected to consider the 
information.  There will be one observer that will attend.  This is normal.  This is to allow 
them to see the process so when this takes place at their school, they are familiar. 

o Provost Curtis asked the President to speak with senate briefly next week about the 
Carnegie change.  To explain why we failed from high activity range to middle activity 
range.  The Carnegie change is due to not enough PhD production and no non-science 
and non-engineering PhDs.   My experience at South Carolina, we had a high number of 
science PhDs.  They also look at one year, and we had declined in PhD productions that 
year.   
 Wai Mok – Nursing offers PhD? 
 Provost Curtis – Yes, but it is similar to a MD.  It is not a PhD. 
 Andrea – It has to be research based. 
 Ramon – If the problem is the number of PhD.  We should get more support for 

GTA’s. 
 Provost Curtis – Yes, but the faculty has to come up with the funding.  We have 

to get it through research funds and tuition. 
 Eric Fong – Is there the potential to reallocate resources? 

 
Faculty Senate 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 2 
 

 Provost Curtis – There is that possibility, but no one area has a large amount of 
resources that could be transferred.  One key thing to do is to increase our 
extramural research funding. 

 Kader Frendi – Research funding wasn’t considered in this? 
 Provost Curtis – Yes, but there are a number of parameters considered, close to 

80.  It was narrowed down to 8 or 9.  It looks like it is the PhD that hurt us.  The 
President said Carnegie has never asked what constitutes as a research 
institution, they invented their own definition.  He also stated that in our 
research funding per capita, we are in the top 50.  We are not the only ones that 
went down.  Some went down that had $300M research dollars. 

 Eric Fong – It has to be because of other considerations. 
 Andrea – Recruitment and bumping enrollment may help with this. 
 Provost Curtis – This was before bumping enrollment, 2013 – 2014. 
 Ramon Cerro – A lot of our research money isn’t research money.  What is 

missing is group support for academic research.  I just came back from a NSF 
panel; out of 26 proposals 1 was awarded. 

o On the tenure promotion process, the RB has finished their work on time.  I will be doing 
my work starting tonight or in the morning. 

o I have also asked all the Deans to do the recruitment and retention plans for their 
colleges.  We will be doing two.  One for this spring and summer and we will assess it.  
Then the other will be done in May for the next year.  This is trying to help us focus on 
graduate and undergraduate retention areas.   

o Lastly, we submitted to Kader Appendix L senate bylaws. 
 

 Officer and Committee Reports 
o President Kader Frendi 

 We had a BOT meeting early February.  After the meeting, we met with other 
senate and executive members.  Alicia catered the food and they brought two 
vans full.  They came with a full team.   Michael, Monica, and I attended this 
luncheon.  We are building this relationship with the other three campuses.  The 
next meeting will be April 8th here at UAH.  We will cater the food.  We will 
hopefully be in a room here on campus.  We will invite Tuscaloosa and UAB to 
attend.  It will be open to the public as well.   

 Next week Ray Pinner will be presenting financials to us.   
 Dan Rochowiak is now the lead of the Collaborative Learning Center.  He would 

like to present to all faculty on February 16th during the afternoon. 

 Carolyn Sanders – It seems like a short lead time? 

 Kader Frendi – It will go out after the meeting. 

 Andrea – To add to Carolyn’s point, I am on the committee and they are 
discussing adding other dates after for more presentations given. 

 I went ahead and created the ADHOC committee to discuss the Professional 
Studies Program.  We will meet tomorrow morning at 9:00 am.   

 Mike is not here due to travel, but he asked me to discuss a couple of policies: 

 Marketing, Electronic sign on Sparkman Drive 

 Indebtedness and Collection Policy 
 I won’t assign them to any committees we will just discuss to take to full senate 

next week. 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 3 
 

 Ramon Cerro – How can an employee be indebted to the university? 

 Provost Curtis – Garnishment of wages. 

 Ramon Cerro – This is also applicable to someone who is indebted to 
another university? 

 Eric Seeman – Yes, this is just in compliance to law that if you are 
indebted to someone outside then you will go to court and the 
university will garnish wages.  Examples would be child support, civil 
judgment.  Part of this that concerns me is what in house indebtedness 
we are talking about.  Who decides that you are in indebted and what is 
the process?  If you sign something that says that you garnish my wages, 
I didn’t see anything about an appeal or to dispute the debt.   

 Joseph Taylor – Also what is the time frame of the warning? 

 Eric Seeman – State law gives thirty days to notify someone.  If there is a 
debt, there has to be an appeals process to provide evidence and 
dispute. 

 Kader Frendi – There is a statement saying that if the employee wishes 
to contest the amount of the debt. 

 Eric Seeman – That is the validity of the amount of the debt.  The 
validity is different.  You may argue that you owe nothing. 

 Provost Curtis – It does say to contest the validity or the amount. 

 James Swain – This is a policy that has been in effect for eight years. 

 Tim Newman – There have been changes made, but we don’t know 
them. 

 Provost Curtis – Many of the policies in the past were in memo form.  
When the President set up the policy and procedures and take up what 
was being handled as a policy be put into policy form.  It would be 
updated often to make it valid as they were doing it.  That is why this 
one is coming. 

 Eric Fong – So we are just affirming this policy? 

 Provost Curtis – Yes. 

 Tim Newman – I have a question about the word indebtedness.  I 
thought that meant you borrowed money.   Is the university in the habit 
of borrowing money? 

 Provost Curtis – No, I think that means you owe a debt.   

 Eric Seeman – A legal definition of indebtedness is:  
o Anything that causes you to be in a deficit to another person or 

entity. 

 Eric Seeman – That could be you borrowing money from someone or a 
parking ticket, running over a university sign.  Anything that could cause 
you to owe money. 

 Tim Newman – Let’s take the sign example.  If I work for a private 
employer and run over a sign.  They cannot just take something out of 
my pay check.  They have to sue me in civil court.  I am just wondering 
what this indebtedness is.  I don’t have a clear answer.  I don’t want us 
to be viewed as establishing a policy that gives the university the ability 
to take from your pay check when they see fit.  If you are borrowing 
money from the university, that would be one thing.  Just to say that 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 4 
 

you damaged us is different. 

 Ramon Cerro – Another question is if this is being covered by civil law, 
why do we have to a policy? 

 Eric Seeman – Since civil law isn’t always cut and dry, this shows how we 
are going to comply with the law.  I do see having the policy is a good 
idea.  You don’t have to retain attorneys; you already have a document 
that everyone is bound to.   

 Ramon Cerro – The point is if the policy is contradictory to the law, the 
law will prevail. 

 Eric Seeman – Yes that is why we have to ensure it is in compliance with 
the law. 

 Ramon Cerro – Should we be more explicit? 

 Eric Seeman – I agree.  There are people going to court all the time over 
what constitutes as indebtedness.  You probably want to have a fixed 
definition. 

 Ramon Cerro – I do understand that you can’t sue the state of Alabama 
or the university. 

 Eric Seeman – You can sue the state under certain circumstances. For 
example, if the state acted against a law violating your rights or liberties 
such as seizing your property, after permission is sought, you can sue 
the state, federal government, or the President. 

 Ramon Cerro – The way I understand this too is that the state can fire 
tenure professor. 

 Eric Seeman – That is not the case.   

 James Swain – The policy seems to address the end game, I presume 
something goes on before we reach the stage of garnishment.   

 Tim Newman – My issue with the sign is if the university wants to be 
reimbursed that is fine, but that would upset me if they just take from 
my check.  If it goes through the court system, I have some protection.  I 
can present evidence and someone determines which evidence is 
stronger.  Internally, I don’t have any. 

 Ramon Cerro – What if there is a fire in your lab and the university 
thinks you are responsible? 

 Provost Curtis – That would become criminal.  If they thought it was 
arson, it would be criminal. 

 Eric Seeman – It would be determined in criminal court.  They would set 
a value during this time.  If you thought differently, you could sue. 

 Ramon Cerro – Who would decide if it was accidental? 

 Eric Seeman – The fire marshal. 

 Eric Fong – Could this be resolved with something stating “legally 
determined indebtedness”?   

 Ramon Cerro – Is contesting covered?  It says that I take it to my Dean. 

 Eric Fong – If we say that it is legally determined. 

 Provost Curtis – You don’t take it to your Dean.  You take it to the 
supervisor of the department it occurred. 

 Kader Frendi – The amendment I heard would be adding, “legally 
determined indebtedness”. 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 5 
 

 Tim Newman – This will be at the beginning of paragraph 3? 

 Carolyn Sanders – Also add the debt will be satisfied changed in the 
same sentence. 

 Tim Newman – I would like to move that this goes to the senate for 
second reading as amended next week. 

 Ramon Cerro – You don’t want to send it to personnel committee? 

 Carolyn Sanders – Is this really necessary? 

 Kader Frendi – I think the discussion here is good. 

 Tim Newman – That would make it stronger.  I just don’t know all the 
ends and outs and want to prevent certain situations from happening.  I 
think adding legally indebtedness makes it stronger. 

 Eric Fong – The motion on the floor is to send to full senate as amended. 

 Carolyn Sanders seconds motion. Ayes carry. No opposition. 
 Kader Frendi – Anything to add to the sign policy? 

 Ramon Cerro – One correction, the 06 at the end isn’t the year, right? 

 Provost Curtis – No, that is the policy number. 

 Andrea – Is it possible to have someone besides the President to press 
the emergency button? 

 Provost Curtis – If the President isn’t here, it is in my job description to 
be his back up. 

 Ramon Cerro – Is there a motion to take this to the full senate? 

 James Swain – I move to take the policy to the full senate.  Ramon Cerro 
seconds. Ayes carry. No oppositions. 

 Kader Frendi – The next policy to discuss is communicable diseases. 

 Mike did a lot of background work with this policy.  He set down with 
Louise from nursing.  One point he would like to bring forth that was 
discussed with Louise is that most of these can be prevented by 
immunization.  When Mike read the policy he thought it was response 
to Ebola and TB.  He would like to add meningitis by a friendly 
amendment.  Other changes that Louise and Mike went through is 
reemphasizing that vaccinated individuals have a small chance and 
should be minimally impacted by this policy.   

 Lenora Smith – I think what he meant by individuals having minimal 
impact is that the policy talks about keeping those students and 
employees away from the university.  If you have been vaccinated, you 
have a small chance and should stay away from those who haven’t. 

 Tim Neman – Do you know if they changed the definition of 
communicable disease?  Before it seemed very broad. 

 Joseph Taylor – Reads definition of communicable disease from existing 
policy. 

 Tim Newman – That does sound different than before. 

 Kader Frendi – Where will we add the friendly amendment of 
meningitis? 

 Lenora Smith – It goes under A2 on the first page.  If I remember 
correctly, meningitis doesn’t have a vaccine. 

 Tim Newman – Does he mean to list meningitis with TB and Ebola?   

 Kader Frendi – Yes, his statement does say that one communicable 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 6 
 

disease that does not have a vaccination. 

 Provost Curtis – What about the students that have to be vaccinated 
before going into the residence hall?  There is something about 
meningitis? 

 Tim Newman – Do we need to add meningitis?  This is just a “such as” 
statement.   

 Joseph Taylor – If you are a first time freshman or living on campus we 
require proof of vaccinations.  I don’t think this has to be added. 

 Tim Newman – The CDMT committee.  There isn’t a faculty 
representative. 

 Provost Curtis – I have the same problem.  There isn’t one from the 
provost office either.  There should be faculty, faculty senate, and 
provost added.  We wouldn’t have anything from the academic side. 

 James Swain – Who is the Chief of Staff? 

 Provost Curtis – Ray Garner.   

 Andrea – So you are saying to add this under regular members? 

 Provost Curtis – I am.  I would like to have someone representing the 
international students.  I would like to have a broader representation on 
the academic side. 

 Kader Frendi – We will add Faculty Senate and Provost Office 
representative. 

 Provost Curtis – I would like for you consider someone from the Office 
of Research and Economic Development.  Often we have visitors coming 
into the institution from various parts of the world under the research 
umbrella.   

 Kader Frendi – We will add an OVPR representative. 

 Ramon Cerro – It also states that the CDMT can modify the policy on 
their own as often as needed.  Should it say that it should go through all 
the steps again if amended? 

 Provost Curtis – It says see Section G under F instead of H.  That needs 
to be corrected. 

 Tim Newman – Can I propose the following revision to the last three 
lines of section F? Can we strike the 6 words and change to “shall 
propose revisions for presidential approval to meet the changing needs 
of the university?  See section G for CDMT composition.” 

 Eric Seeman – I have a question for my information.  In notification, 
page 5, if a person has reasonable base to believe someone has a 
communicable disease will report to CDMT.  Is there contact 
information for the reporting person?   

 Lenora Smith – It is the Dean of College of Nursing.  She is the chair. 

 Provost Curtis – It is a sabbatical professional from the clinic appointed 
by the dean, not the dean. 

 Kader Frendi – In old days, we use to have colorful documents within 
our office with important numbers. 

 Tim Newman – I propose that this policy be sent the faculty and student 
development committee to read through.  Ramon Cerro seconds.  Ayes 
carry.  No oppositions. 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 7 
 

 The last policy to discuss is Academic Titles Positions. 

 Kader Frendi - Mike and I are in support of this policy.  My department 
has lecturers and they are very valuable.  I understand we are not 
encouraging to hire lecturers.  It allows junior faculty to be available for 
research.  I lost lecturers to Research Park because they had lack of 
visibility and it was a dead end job.  I do realize the drive is to hire 
tenure tracked faculty.  However, the lecturers we do have are doing a 
great job.  I think based on this and my experience as chair before, this 
isn’t a policy to hire more lecturers but support those existing.  We see 
this more as recognition to those on campus now rather than hiring. 

 Joseph Taylor – We should have had this in place a long time ago.  We 
have great lecturers in our department that have won awards and do 
extra service.  They are asking for the opportunity to do more and get 
recognition.  This isn’t replacing tenure tracked faculty, but creating 
space for our lecturers.   

 Eric Seeman – The needs for every department and college are 
different.  English is a great example due to so many service classes.  
Hiring another assistant professor would be good, but it wouldn’t meet 
the need we would still be using adjunct versus hiring a lecturer. I know 
there are other departments that don’t need lecturers.   If we are going 
to maintain a high quality of instruction, you have to keep the best 
people.  I think this is an important policy for those departments that 
need lecturers.  They will see that this position is necessary.  Without it, 
we will have squads of adjuncts that will decrease the quality of service 
classes.  This will directly impact the other units that may not need the 
lecturers but need the courses they teach. 

 Ramon Cerro – There are some basic principles that are being 
overlooked.  I understand the need for adjunct due to not having 
enough faculty.  Secondly, what message are we sending if we have a 
policy that on one page defines the entire tenure tracked faculty and 
the other fifteen pages define the lecturer positions?  What are the 
important positions and the normal position of the university?  Is the 
normal position adjunct?   

 Eric Seeman – This would be based on the department.  Within English, 
you are going to have two typical positions.  You will have lecturer teach 
100/200 level classes. 

 Ramon Cerro – Why? I teach a 200 level class. 

 Eric Seeman – Joseph, how many sections of 101/102 are there in 
English? 

 Joseph Taylor – We will have around 50 sections. 

 Eric Seeman – That is why you need a lecturer.  We could not manage if 
we have 5 sections of 101 some things wouldn’t get taught. 

 Ramon Cerro – Why do you think an adjunct faculty has less 
responsibility than a tenured faculty?  If we are talking about retention, 
those should be taught by the best faculty. 

 Eric Seeman – If we are talking about English, you are getting so many 
that are highly qualified. 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 8 
 

 Joseph Taylor – We are trying to get more full time lecturers and more 
graduate teachers.  We want people who are invested in the university.    

 Eric Fong – Why are crossing these two issues, hiring and labeling?  The 
fact is that if we don’t put the document together all these positions still 
exist.  This is fundamentally saying what an emeritus faculty is.  We 
should be hiring tenured faculty.  This is true due to the change in our 
research productivity.  You are saying we would be better off with a 
lecturer in psychology.  You would however be better with tenured 
faculty if you wanted to offer doctoral programs. 

 Eric Seeman – The argument I made is we would be better if we had a 
squad of 101 classes.  Like in English if you have 50 sections of intro 
classes and hired tenured faculty, they are all going to want to teach in 
the upper division.  Do they have the majors to support that?  You are 
going to be telling them I understand that you are conducting research 
but you will be teaching freshmen comp.  They aren’t going to stay. 

 Eric Fong – Every department is complex.  We are mixing two issues.  I 
agree we need to hire more tenured faculty.  The other side is how we 
define the faculty we have.  Fundamentally this is all this is, defining the 
positions we have. 

 Joseph Taylor – We feed three major service obligations as well as our 
majors and MA.  All this has to be covered.  English shouldn’t be the 
focus because we are so diverse. This is something we should have had 
ten years ago.  There are other universities that have this and are still 
hiring tenured faculty.   

 Ramon Cerro – The statistics in 1975 is that 75% of all the professors in 
the United States were tenured faculty.  Today that percent is less than 
40.  Where is the trend?   

 Tim Newman – I want to echo what Ramon has said.  I see this policy as 
a reaction to misuse of personnel at the university.  I think we have 
been unwilling to commit to tenure lines when we should have and 
hiring lecturers instead.  We know we underpay those people as well as 
over task them. We know they have an advanced degree.  Over time 
they have developed ties to this area.  We misuse them by paying them 
a below market wage with a lot of duties.  I see this policy as a band aid 
to address this issue by giving them a nicer title with no pay increase.  I 
don’t think it is a right solution and I am opposed to this policy for that 
reason.  I am also opposed to this policy for a much more fundamental 
reason.  This policy as it is laid out establishes definitions for things that 
are already in the faculty handbook.  This is a competing document that 
defines them.  Even if you could convince me to go along with the 
lecture ladder and librarians, I think this couldn’t go forward with all 
these definitions.  The information needs to remain in the handbook.  
This policy could go forward if these items were removed.  I don’t see 
how it can go to the senate at this point.   

 Carolyn Sanders – If I could connect my point to Joe, I understand the 
statistics.  The music department have depended heavily on part-time 
faculty.  They come close to teaching a full load at $3000 - $3500 per 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 9 
 

class.  Allowing them to become a lecturer would be a huge step up for 
them.  I think we need to be mindful of some of these departments who 
depend so heavily on part-time faculty.  We would like to keep and give 
them the option to step up.  There are people on campus that are so 
valuable and need support. 

 Ramon Cerro – Why not have them as tenured faculty? 

 Carolyn Sanders – With music that isn’t always possible.  Many of them 
are fantastic with what they do for us, but they do not have doctoral 
degrees.  That could be somewhat unique to arts.  I don’t think the 
faculty I am thinking of would be considered because they don’t have a 
doctorate.   

 Ramon Cerro – We are thinking of particular cases. The faculty should 
be independent enough to have academic freedom. 

 Joseph Taylor – I agree with not redefining what is in the handbook.  I 
would like for the lecturers to have a lecture ladder.  I think they 
deserve that.   

 Ramon Cerro - Part-time and lecturers should be an exception to the 
rule, not the rule. 

 Kader Frendi - On the other hand, I agree with Tim on the duplication of 
the handbook within the policy.  I think we should state that the faculty 
handbook supersedes this policy or have them mirror each other. 
Duplication isn’t a good thing.  In my department, we have a healthy 
mix. Yes, tenure tracked faculty are needed for research.  Lecturers have 
been heavy load lifters.  They lift the burden load of tenured faculty.  
The lecturers do an awesome job.  We have a lecturer who has been 
with us since I have been here.  She wouldn’t want a tenured position. 

 Ramon Cerro – You sound like the man from Nevada.  He stated that 
blacks were better off as slaves.  Sorry to tell you.  You don’t think that 
part-timers are unhappy?  You are not going to change this equation.  I 
have people to tell me they have to wait to know if they will work next 
year. 

 Kader Frendi – To be honest, you would want a lecturer than part-timer.  
A lecturer would have office hours here in the building.  Whereas a part-
timer goes back to NASA or Research Park, and are never seen by the 
students.  Part-timer’s do more harm to us than lecturer. 

 Tim Newman – I would like to move that this policy be sent to the 
finance committee to be reviewed and all the definitions be removed.   

 Lenora Smith – I think that the clinical instructor is not part of that. I do 
think that the clinical assistant and associate are.  In the verbiage itself, 
it talks a clinical lecture and the two terms are interchanged there. 

 Tim Newman – That is my motion that it be sent. 

 Eric Seeman – I see Tim’s point to put a reference to the faculty 
handbook there, because there are inconsistencies.  

 Provost Curtis – Chapter 7 in the faculty handbook is the next item up 
for revision.  Almost all research universities I know do not tenure 
assistant professors.   

 Ramon Cerro – The problem is that if you want to make someone an 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 10 
 

associate professor before he is tenure, then he should have the 
qualifications for the associate professor not just assistant professor. 

 Kader Frendi – All in favor to send this policy back to Joseph’s 
committee?  Ayes carry anonymously. No oppositions. 

 Joseph Taylor – Will we look at the handbook revisions or as it currently 
stands? 

 Provost Curtis – If I can make a suggestion.  Kader and I have scheduled 
to look at chapter 7 this summer.  Would it be reasonable to wait until 
chapter 7 is revised, then revise the policy?  Instead of continuing to 
spend time on something that is not to your likings.   

 Tim Newman – The only possible issue against that is in regards to the 
librarians.  If we view that as an important issue, we can cover that now 
rather than wait. 

 Joseph Taylor – I think the only ones who would have an issue are the 
lecturers that keep asking when is this going to happen.  Is there some 
way to have another policy that covers librarians? 

 Provost Curtis – If we leave the tenure track and clinical research.  We 
focus only on lecture and librarians.  At some point the senate will have 
to decide one way or the other on lecture ladder. 

 Kader Frendi – Should we craft another policy? 

 Provost Curtis – I think that is the best way to serve our people who 
have been waiting. 

 Kader Frendi – Who will do this? 

 Provost Curtis – I can or Joseph and I. 

 Ramon Cerro – I do think this should go back to personnel. 

 Kader Frendi - The committees will look at it.   

 Carolyn Sanders – That will take forever. 

 Joseph Taylor – Are we crafting a new policy or we looking at the old 
policy. 

 Provost Curtis – I will be happy to split it and give it to you to review.   

 Tim Newman - I do think if this came back without the research and 
tenured faculty, I think we could debate this. 

 Provost Curtis – I will get it to you within a week and a half. 

 Tim Newman - We will cancel my motion.  Since it is staying within the 
same committee its fine to let them review it. 

 Kader Frendi made a motion to extend the meeting by 5 minutes. Eric Seeman 
moves the motion.  Second by Carolyn Sanders.   

o Ombudsperson, Carolyn Sanders 
 No Report. 

o Past President, Wai Mok 
 No Report. 

o Parliamentarian, Tim Newman 
 No Report. 

o Finance and Resources Committee Co-Chair, Joseph Taylor 

 We have revised the distinguished speaker.  We are going to do it by the 
semester.  The call for fall is out now the deadline is March 7th.  Please 
encourage your faculty to submit proposals.  There is one $4000 



Senate Executive Committee Report 2-18-16 Page 11 
 

support, and three spots of $2000.  We hope this will put it out front 
more. 

o Governance and Operations Committee Co-Chair, James Swain 
 We are making progress with elections.  It is slow moving. 

o Undergraduate Scholastic Affairs Committee Chair, Eric Seeman 
 I have no report.  I don’t have anything on the SIE issue. 

 Provost Curtis – SIE issue? 

 Eric Seeman – SIE’s remained open after final exam date.   

 Provost Curtis – We are transitioning the SIE’s from testing services to 
the Office of Institution of Research and Assessment.  I will certainly 
inform them of this issue.  We are doing our best to get them running 
effectively. 

 Eric Seeman – One concern is they are open too long.  Another is that 
the student reported it wasn’t logged. 

 Ramon Cerro – If I can make a suggestion, can we go back to the paper 
way? 

 Provost Curtis – We actually cannot.  There are things people have done 
to get high response rates.  The program that was used has expired.  It is 
quite costly to use paper. 

o Personnel Committee Chair, Ramon Cerro 
 No Report.  I am going to take this policy to personnel since it closely related to 

chapter 7.  We worked on that chapter. 

 Provost Curtis – Why don’t you wait until I bring back the new policy? 

 Ramon Cerro – Ok. 
o Undergraduate Curriculum Committee Co-Chair, Eric Fong 

 No Report. 
o Faculty and Student Development Committee Chair, Lenora Smith 

 No Report. 
 

 Approve the Agenda for Faculty Senate Meeting #565 February 25, 2016 
o Tim Newman motions to approve the agenda adding the two policies, Marketing and 

Indebtedness.  Aye carry unanimously. 
 

 The meeting then adjourned at 2:30 pm after a motion from Lenora Smith, second by Tim 
Newman, committed affirmed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 1 

 
 

FACULTY SENATE MEETING #564 
January 28, 2016 

12:30 P.M. in NUR 205A 
 

  
 

Present:            Wai Mok, Tim Landry, Eric Fong, David Stewart, Joe Conway, Joseph Taylor, Irena 
Buksa, Carolyn Sanders, Jeremy Fischer, Eric Seeman, Mike Banish, Richard 
Fork, James Swain, Kader Frendi, Babak Shotorban, Mark Lin, Casey Norris, Ann 
Bianchi, Azita Amiri, Monica Beck, Cheryl Emich, Lenora Smith, Udaysankar 
Nair, Luciano Matzkin, Debra Moriarity, Jeff Weimer, Peter Slater, Tim Newman, 
Ming Sun, Vladimir Florinski   

 
Absent with proxy:  Christine Sears, Xuejing Xing, Anne Marie Choup, Larry Carey, John Schnell, 
                                        Diana Bell, Ramon Cerro, Ken Zuo, Marlena Primeau, John Shriver 
 
Absent without proxy: Xiaotong Li, Kyle Knight, Ying-Cheng Li, Earl Wells, Monica Beck, Grant 
                                             Zhang, Monica Dillihunt   
 
Guests: Provost Christine Curtis 
 Mr. Ray Hayes 
 
 
 Faculty Senate President Kader Frendi called the meeting to order at 12:33 pm.  Motion is given to 

suspend meeting rules.  Tim Newman seconds motions.  Ayes carry the motion. 
 

 Presentation – Mr. Ray Hayes, Incoming University of Alabama Chancellor 
o The presentation will discuss higher education funding (nationally and within the state), 

overview of the system office, and look into the future giving my perspective.  Facts prove 
that higher education funding is declining.  Nationally higher education is spending 28% less 
per student than 2008.  From 1975 to present, we receive more funds from tuition than 
state appropriations.  Students have to pay more in tuition to offset the decrease from state 
funds.  The other two campuses are looking the exact same in this area.   

o The system has over 63,000 students over three campuses.  This is based on the fall 
semester.  We employee almost 37,000 within the system.  A large portion of this comes 
from our health facilities, especially due to facilities in Birmingham.  We have a lot of 
affiliates within the health system.  When you combine faculty, staff, and students, we are 
housing 100,000 people which is equal to the 5th largest city in the state.  We house over 
13,000 students on campuses.  We serve 24,000 meals on campuses.  We have a police 
force on each campus.  It’s a very big operation when you look at the system statewide. 

o Some Legislatures believe that the system office can transfer funds between each campus, 
that is not so.  Federal grants and contracts are specific and have to be spent on what it was 
awarded for.  UAH’s grants and contracts are larger than the University of Alabama’s.  You 
still cannot shift this around, it stays within that university.  State funding equals $451 
million dollars, and we have a $5.4 billion dollar budget.  As you can see we do not receive 
our entire budget from the state, there are other sources.   We have over $1.1 billion dollars 

 
Faculty Senate 

 
Faculty Senate 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 2 

in our endowment fund currently.  Legislatures want to cut our budget and think we can 
utilize these funds to compensate for the cut.  The endowment fund is accumulated by 
restricted gifts given by friends, faculty, and alumni.  These funds may be allocated to award 
scholarships, and that cannot be changed.  The idea that it is used for general support for 
the campus is incorrect. 

o A former trustee, Sid McDonald, gave a $4 million dollar gift to build an office to house all 
system employees.  We have 85 system employees.  The majority are attorneys and internal 
auditors.  The rest work within investment and benefits.   

o Our trustee board consists of fifteen members, two of which are from this area - Ron Gray 
and Brent Sexton.  Trustees are volunteers.  Trustee Gray is Chair of our Finance Committee 
and Trustee Sexton is Chair of our Investment Committee.  They are very good and spend a 
lot of time committed to their work.  In previous systems that I have worked for, the 
trustees were government appointed.  In those times, I felt it was very political and not 
focused on the best interest of the campuses.  Their efforts are greatly appreciated and 
need to be thanked for their efforts. 

o I do want to discuss the changes that have occurred on campus.  Our Senior Senator was 
involved in giving a large amount of funds earmarked for the development of the Shelby 
Center.   Since the Shelby Center has open here on campus, bachelor’s degrees in 
engineering has risen 50%, bachelor’s degrees in science has risen 40%, master degrees in 
engineering has risen 16%, master degrees in science has risen 48%.  These buildings make a 
significant change for the campus. 

o We are a very significant economic engine for the state.  I don’t think this is communicated 
very well.  UAH has sustained 1,531 jobs giving an annual impact of $684 million dollars.  
These are very significant numbers within our state.  We have fourteen public universities 
within the state of Alabama, our campuses within our system graduates 43%.   

o Our population increased from 4.4 million to 4.8 million during 2000 – 2013.  Our per capita 
income increased $39,000 to $42,276.  In this same time period, the degrees awarded 
increased 28%.  My idea is that one of the best economic premises for the state is growth in 
graduates.  Investment in higher education is a great investment for the state of Alabama. 

o We are very involved in Alabama Unites for Education.  We are doing well, but we need to 
better protect our trust fund.  Last year, the Legislative session took funds from the 
education trust fund and moved it to the general fund.  We will have the same issue during 
this year’s session.  Chancellor Whitt and I have joined with Tommy Bice and the K-12 
Superintendent to focus on protecting the education trust fund.  To be honest, we all know 
K-12 teacher’s need a raise.  We have argued the difference in salary between K-12 and 
higher education professors.  Our main focus is still just to protect the education trust fund.  
If we can accomplish this, there will be extra funds that can be shared among the three 
universities.  We feel we have made an impact to the legislature to protect this fund.  I think 
it is a great investment to raise the per capita within the state. 

o Lastly, I have spent my entire career in higher education.  We focus on administrative 
bureaucracy and forget what we are about.  We are here to help students pursue their 
degrees.  We don’t spend enough time talking about this.  We are going to spend more time 
on this subject on the future.  We appreciate all that you do as a faculty member. 

 Michael Banish – RSA – you don’t control it, but we hear there is a move underfoot 
to dissolve RSA. 

 Mr. Hayes – I sit on that board and rolling off July 1st this year.  There is a faculty 
member from UAB taking my place.  I don’t see it dissolving.  Future faculty 
members may have more options outside of defined benefits options.  Everyone 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 3 

currently in the defined benefit program should maintain.  We had to add liability to 
our books this year.  That liability is of the state not of the three campuses.  I think 
over the years we will get defined benefit funded. 

 Tim Newman – There is a perception among the community that the university has 
difficulty with board in regards to sports.  A lot are saying that UAH and UAB are the 
step-child to the UA system.  Do you think this is a reality?  What does the system 
office need to do to aid us? 

 Mr. Hayes – I don’t think it is a reality.  I do think the athletic department is going to 
have a difficult time in the future.  The Power 5 Conferences are getting a large 
piece of the TV/media information.  The other conferences aren’t in the same 
ballpark.  Some schools like UAH, Division 2, are a different magnitude.  Last year 
total revenue at UA in athletics was $154 million dollars, UAB totaled $30 million 
dollars, and UAH totaled $6.2 million dollars.  It’s obviously different among the 
colleges.  A division two athletic program can do great things.  However, we don’t 
express this.  UAH’s strength is science and technology bringing in more contracts 
and grants than Alabama.   

 In addition to these revenues, there is $6 to $7 million dollars from licensing 
that transfers into the campus fund.  

 Jeff Weimer – I have a question in regards to your silo graphs.  We have these 
resources among each campus that have programs that could share these 
resources.  I see a difficulty in convincing the UA System that it is from their side to 
share these resources instead of each campus having to pull from their own “silo” to 
share. 

 Mr. Hayes – I agree 110%.  We are going to make a presentation next month about 
systems that we can upgrade that would be faster and more efficient rather than 
relying on each campus to do so.  I am hopeful to get each campus to spend more 
time with each other.  We don’t do a good job interacting among other faculty. 

 Kader Frendi – In regards to the infrastructure issue, as UAH grows and student 
population grows, our need for larger classrooms will increase.  What helps to push 
new development? 

 Mr. Hayes – That is primarily initiated by the leadership of the campus.  We haven’t 
had any capital money from the state in 8-9 years.  Other states give capital money 
to campuses every year.  If we protect the trust fund, that may allow us to allocate 
an amount to campuses to help build buildings.  
 

  Approval of Faculty Senate Meeting #563 Minutes from December 17, 2015 
Deb Moriarity motions to approve Minutes 563. Tim Newman seconds the motion.  
Ayes carry the motion. No oppositions. 
Motion to approve Faculty Senate Minutes 563 passes. 

 
 FSEC Report from January 21, 2016 

Michael Banish moves to accept. Eric Seeman seconds the motion.  
Ayes across the room. No oppositions.  
Motion to accept Faculty Senate Executive Committee Report January 21, 2016 passes. 
 

 Officer and Committee Reports 
o President Kader Frendi 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 4 

 There is a board of trustees meeting next week.  Mike and I will be in attendance.  
The whole executive committee is invited to attend by Alecia Gross.  We as set 
presidents have been meeting together for lunch after the board of trustee 
meeting.  We are hoping this will start collaboration among other faculty members 
between campuses. 

 Our Chapters 1, 2, and 3 are on the board’s agenda for this meeting.  Hopefully they 
will be approved and on the website shortly after. 

o Past President , Wai Mok 
 No Report. 

o Ombudsperson, Carolyn Sanders 
 No Report. 

o Parliamentarian, Tim Newman  
 No Report. 

o Personnel Committee Chair, Ramon Cerro 
 No Report. 

o Undergraduate Scholastic Affairs Committee Chair, Eric Seeman 
 No Report. 
 Tim Newman – I have received some evidence that student evaluations remained 

open after final grades were distributed.  Some students were still submitting 
evaluations well into this semester.  This seems irregular to me and may be 
appropriate for this committee to look into this.  Another thing to consider is a lot of 
the courses are only getting 40% participation with online evaluations.  We were 
receiving 90% with paper evaluations.  I think as faculty we need to look and see if 
we are happy with that. 

 Debra Moriarity – I would like to make an additional comment in relation to SIE’s.  I 
have a feeling that the SIE’s on the testing services now are more complicated than 
we realize and we want to be sensitive to that.  However, I received SIE’s last week.  
I would like to get those back in a timely manner so that we can apply that feedback 
for the next semester.   

 Eric Seeman – This would also be beneficial to those professors who just finished 
teaching their first course.  If they don’t have any SIE’s and the tenure committee 
meets, that could pose a problem. 

 Debra Moriarity – It has improved.  We use to get them much later. 
 A senator added that some of the lecture courses don’t meet these requirements at 

all.  We receive no data from evaluations. 
 Debra Moriarity – I was on the committee early on.  The number of options has 

decreased.  They are now at a 4 rather than 5.  There is almost no distinction 
anymore.  The detail has been lost in the SIE.  Our committee should look at this to 
give more granularities there. 

 Kader Frendi – There was a discussion that went on for a while in regards to this 
topic. 

o Faculty and Student Development, Lenora Smith 
 No Report. 

o Governance and Operations, James Swain 
 I attended an operation meeting on the 7th of January.  It is time to elect new 

senators.  We have contacted every chair to notify them that senators are to be 
elected by March 1st.   



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 5 

 We also considered a bill that was submitted about deanships.  We couldn’t come to 
agreement. 

 Kader Frendi – I would like to stress for elections to be done on time.  We would like 
all rolling off and new senators at the last meeting together.  I would like to have all 
chairs elected by the end of the semester. 

o Finances and Resource Committee Chair, Joseph Taylor 
 We will meet next week to finalize the distinguished speakers.  Please encourage 

your faculty to consider distinguished speakers to bring to campus for 2016 – 2017.  
Last year we only had six applications total, so we couldn’t fill the spots offered.  It’s 
a great opportunity to bring people outside of campus.   

 Next faculty senate meeting Ray Pinner will be here to answer questions about the 
budget.  I will send out a link to the budget book so you can review. 

 Kader Frendi – When is the announcement for distinguished speakers that is coming 
up? 

 Joseph Taylor -   Hopefully it will be out next month. 
o Undergraduate Curriculum Committee Co-Chair, Eric Fong 

 As you know last December Dean Clanton came to propose Professional Studies.  
The Provost agreed for the undergraduate committee to review this proposal.  The 
majority of the curriculum committee does not agree on this as it currently stands.  
The issues have to do with having students who can concentrate in certain areas 
and receive a professional studies degree.   Some people feel that could damage the 
reputation of our current degrees.  As these students in professional studies create 
a program of study, there is nothing that states they need a 400 level course.  They 
could only take 300 level classes and receive a degree claiming a certain 
concentration.  The program typically houses students 24 years old or older.  This 
doesn’t prelude current students who couldn’t pass 400 level courses and transfer 
over to professional studies.  We realize that something needs to state how many 
400 level courses they would need. 

 Another issue is that we are creating an infrastructure that already exists within 
current colleges.  Many colleges are already interdisciplinary.  Is there a way to 
include other colleges and to house it in a college that is interdisciplinary in nature?   

 How people earn credits is another issue.  How do we determine if they get credit 
for an experience and who will determine that?  Will there be a faculty committee 
created to determine credits? 

 What would it take for us to be ok with this?  We can potentially agree that Dean 
Clanton could get with each college and discuss the programs offered.  This would 
determine the interdisciplinary nature offered with those current programs.  In 
hopes this would take away from the idea of it damaging our current degrees.  What 
if we create six professional study programs of study that they can choose from?  
Then we could determine which classes need to go into each program.  There are 
current issues with courses that are listed for certain programs.  One being a 100 
level English course that is offered as a 300 level course. 

 Debra Moriarity – We need to communicate that this a good program and 
that it is needed.  We want to get this program going.   

 Eric Fong – We really want to give opportunities to nontraditional students.  
We are all on board and no single committee member is against helping 
nontraditional students. 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 6 

 Kader Frendi – Being located in Huntsville, we are in a prime area for 
nontraditional students. 

 Eric Fong – Absolutely.  Other universities are offering this program. 

 Cherly Emmit – Do we have anything in place currently to attract in military 
or retired military? 

 Eric Fong – I am not aware of any. 

 Cherly Emmit – In a previous institution where I worked, they had an office 
staffed by former military that could evaluate their military career and 
convert that into credits and find comparable courses for them.  As an 
example, my husband is former military and wanted to spend his GI bill on 
education.  There wasn’t anything here at UAH that interested him, and he 
went on to FIT.  

 Eric Fong – An addition to pushing this degree could be the military aspect.  
One option that we have thrown out is creating an AD HOC committee to 
bring in ideas. 

o President-Elect, Michael Banish 
 We have another policy – Online/Distance Education Policy.  It was presented to us 

four months ago originally.  We had questions about it and worked with 
administration.  The Provost, Dr. Frendi, the lawyer, and I sat down to change some 
of the language.  We worked with the lawyer to change the wording that you cannot 
copyright course syllabi.  The changes greatly improve the policy and the protection 
of the faculty, in our view.  It protects the faculty’s recordings and videos. 

 Kader Frendi – Let me show the highlighted changes.  We didn’t make any 
changes to the core.  You will see the crossing out in the policy that was sent 
out in appendix II.   

 Michael Banish – We have a very important statement at the bottom - if the 
faculty member leaves, they have the right to the content of the online 
course.  At this point, I am going to thank the Provost for agreeing with Dr. 
Frendi and myself.   

 Kader Frendi – The special issues had four different items.  We removed 
those that were redundant. 

 Michael Banish – The FSEC did vote on the policy and it did pass thru. 

 Tim Newman – The second change, can you page back to that?  It says that 
the instructor owns the content if they leave, but if they stay they don’t? 

 Provost Curtis – It was replacing a statement that indicated that the faculty 
member didn’t have the right to take the content with them when they left 
the university.  So in that context it makes sense, but I understand your 
point.  You own it while you are here and when you leave.  We may want to 
change the wording. 

 Michael Banish – The faculty member has right to course content including 
if the faculty member leaves the university.  Could we make this as a 
friendly amendment? 

o Request affirmed by committee. 

 Wai Mok – A student request to download the lecture?  Do we grant them 
permission? 



Senate Minutes 564-01-28-2016   Page 7 

 Michael Banish – I do not.  This policy is much more in line with UA and 
UAB’s policies.  We have a shared course with UA and the professor refuses 
to allow the students to have non-class time access to the videos. 

 Wai Mok – His reasoning is he is traveling with no internet access and wants 
to download the video to view offline.   

 Michael Banish – I would handle that by allowing the student to come to my 
office and watch the video asking questions as needed.  This says that you 
own the material.  This would ultimately be up to you. 

 Jeff Weimer – If they own the copyright there is also fair use privileges.  
When you go to that specific part in the fair use statement, there are four 
tenants that are stated about fair use.  Within this bound, I would approach 
it as it is yours and you may not give it to anyone else.  That is basically what 
copyright allows you to do.  You wouldn’t be violating anything by doing 
this. 

 Jeff Weimer -I may have misunderstood, but one thing in here is that the 
faculty member has to give permission if the video is used outside the 
university.  Is there a comparison to students who have to also give 
permission if they are in those videos? 

 Provost Curtis – Yes, it is listed under number two of special issues. 

 Jeff Weimer – I am questioning that it’s stated explicitly that the faculty 
must obtain online students written permission before using the students 
work. 

 Michael Banish – Kader and I have hinted that this paragraph should go to 
student government and let them report on this issue. 

 Jeff Weimer – If the student films for advertisement, is this covering that the 
faculty and the student give permission? 

 Michael Banish – I don’t think that is within this policy.  The university is 
allowed to use pictures of students as long as they are not identified. 

 A motion to approve the policy was made by Michael Banish.  Tim Newman accepts 
the motion with the change to sentence two.  Motion seconded by Eric Seeman.  
Motion carried unanimously.   

 Michael Banish – We have been looking at the copyright policy in light to this but we 
will not discuss this today. 

 James Swain – I want to make everyone aware that the default setting on cameras 
leaves course material available to students indefinitely unless it is turned off.  I did 
research this and it is true.  It is very easy to change. 

 Motion to adjourn.  Michael Banish seconded. 
 
 

Faculty Senate Meeting #564 adjourned 
January 28, 2016, 1:54 P.M. 

 



Proxies for Senate meetings must be a Senate-eligible individual from the same academic unit. No 
individual may carry more than one proxy. 

PLEASE SEND PROXIES TO LAUREN BAKER: facsen@uah.edu 

 

FACULTY SENATE 
MEETING #565 AGENDA 

THURSDAY, February 25, 2016 

12:30 PM to 2:00 PM 

NURSING BUILDING, ROOM 205A 

 

Call to Order 

 
1. Approve Faculty Senate Meeting #564 Minutes from January 28, 2016 

 
2. Accept FSEC Report from February 18, 2016  

 

3. Administration Reports 
 

 Presentation by Ray Pinner 
 

4. Officer and Committee Reports 
 

 Indebtedness and Collection Policy 
 Sparkman Drive Electronic Sign Board Policy 

 
5. Miscellaneous/Additional business 
 
Adjourn 

 

Faculty Senate 



Policy 
06.02.08 

Revised: October 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

 

THE UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA IN HUNTSVILLE 

INDEBTEDNESS AND COLLECTION POLICY 

Number 06.02.08 

Division Human Resources 

Date January 15, 2008 
 

Purpose To provide information and guidance regarding indebtedness of an employee. 

 
Policy It is the policy of The University of Alabama in Huntsville to avoid official 

involvement in the personal affairs of its employees. However, the University 
expects its employees to be financially responsible and to honor their just 
debts. 

 
Garnishments of wages will be answered and implemented by the University 
according to the requirements of the Writ of Garnishment until the garnished 
sum has been paid to the court in full. 

 
In the event of a legally determined indebtedness of an employee to the 
University, for which a voluntary repayment plan has not been established, 
the debt will be satisfied through a payroll deduction process, following all 
federal and state statutes. Prior to implementing such payroll deduction, the 
University will provide the employee with notice of the amount and duration 
of such payroll deductions. If the employee wishes to contest the validity or 
amount of the debt, he or she may do so before the payroll deduction is 
made by taking the matter up with the supervisor in the division in which the 
charge originates. 

 
Indebtedness of an employee to the University may also be satisfied by 
withholding all or part of any lump sum payment otherwise due to an 
employee upon separation from the University by retirement, resignation or 
termination of employment. 

 
Ordinarily and for purposes of this policy, a debt shall be considered 
delinquent when it is thirty (30) days or more past due. 

 
Procedures Employees of the University will have the opportunity to review the policy and 

sign the Indebtedness and Collection Policy form stating they understand it is 
a condition of employment. 

 
Review The Human Resources Office and Office of Budgets and Management 

Information are responsible for the review of this policy every five years (or 
whenever circumstances require). 



Policy 
06.02.08 

Revised: October 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Approval 
 
 

 
  

Chief University Counsel Date 
 

 
  

Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration Date 
 

 
  

Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs Date 
 

 
  

Vice President for Research and Economic Development Date 
 

 
  

Vice President for Advancement Date 
 

 
  

Vice President for Student Affairs Date 
 

 
  

Vice President for Diversity Date 
 

 
  

Associate Vice President for Human Resources Date 
 

 
  

Associate Vice President for Budgets & Financial Planning Date 
 
 
APPROVED: 

 
 

 
  

President Date 



  Policy 
  04.02.06 
  Page 1 of 2 

THE UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA IN HUNTSVILLE 
 

OFFICE OF MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS  
SPARKMAN DRIVE ELECTRONIC MESSAGE BOARD POLICIES 

 
 
 
Number  04.02.06 
 
Division  Marketing and Communications 
 
Date   January 5, 2016 
 
Purpose The purpose of this policy is to establish proper use and access to 

the Sparkman Drive Electronic Message Board managed by the 
Office of Marketing and Communications. 

 
Policy Placing messages on the electronic message board will utilize the 

same procedure as for News Notes and Social Media notifications. 
Contact the UAH News Notes representative or the social media 
coordinator to submit proposed messages.  

 
Marketing and Communications will categorize the messages into 
one of five priority areas and group those in the same area into 
message blocks for rotation on the message board.  

 
Message Block Priorities 
 

1. Events open to the general public 
2. Daily events for students 
3. Campus/community events 
4. Congratulatory messages 
5. Special welcome messages 

 
Messages responding to urgent situations may pre-empt all other 
messaging at the direction of the President. Examples include 
emergency situations on campus or unscheduled university 
closures. 
 

        
Procedures For additional information or questions, contact the Office of 

Marketing and Communications, 256-824-6414. 
 
Review  The Vice President for University Advancement is responsible for 

the review of this policy every five years (or whenever 
circumstances require). 



  Policy 
  04.02.06 
  Page 2 of 2 

Approval 
 
             
Chief University Counsel       Date 
 
 

             
Vice President for University Advancement    Date 
 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 

 

             
President         Date 
 


	Agenda Meeting 565 2-25-16 .pdf
	Call to Order


